

and taxes required to be levied for the payment of such bonds shall not be subject to any limitation of rate or amount.

Sec. 2. Section 1 shall take effect upon its approval by the board of county commissioners of Ramsey county, and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.

Sec. 3. Any other provision of law or charter to the contrary notwithstanding, the council of the city of St. Paul by resolution adopted by at least five affirmative votes may, without a vote of the electorate, borrow not to exceed \$300,000 during the calendar year 1973 for the purpose of providing and appropriating funds to the Ramsey county welfare board for social service programs, and to execute obligations of the city therefore as the council may determine. The obligations shall be payable in not more than 18 months from the date of issuance and may bear interest at a rate as the council shall determine, not in excess of seven percent per annum. The obligations may be issued and sold without publication of any notice for the sale thereof. The full faith and credit of the city shall be pledged irrevocably for the prompt and faithful payment of these obligations and shall be sold in the manner set forth in the council resolution. The council of the city of St. Paul is authorized to levy and collect a tax to repay such obligations issued pursuant to the authority contained herein and this authority is not subject to any tax or appropriation or expenditure limit otherwise imposed by any law or charter provision. Funds derived from this authority shall be and are hereby appropriated without any further action required by the city of St. Paul to the Ramsey county welfare board for the purposes set forth above and to be expended in accordance with the approved budget of the said welfare board, and these funds shall constitute the city's 27½ percent match to Ramsey county's 72½ percent contribution to the said welfare board's total budget.

Sec. 4. Section 3 shall become effective only after its approval by a majority of the governing body of the city of St. Paul and upon compliance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.

Approved May 24, 1973.

CHAPTER 720—S.F.No.2417

[Coded in Part]

An act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money therefor and limiting the use

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

thereof; providing for the transfer of certain moneys in the state treasury; authorizing land acquisition in certain cases; fixing and limiting the amount of fees to be collected in certain cases; making funds available for seaway trade promotion; providing penalties for misusing appropriated moneys; amending Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 3.102; 3.921; 6.221; 8.02; 15.16; 15.50; 16.17; 268.15, Subdivision 3; 268.16, Subdivision 1; 268.16, Subdivision 2; 326.52; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 15A.21; 16.141, Subdivision 3; 16.165; 97.486; and Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 23, Subdivision 3, as amended.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **APPROPRIATION; STATE GOVERNMENT; ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION.** Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, the sums hereinafter set forth in the columns designated "APPROPRIATIONS", or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the general fund in the state treasury, or any other fund herein designated, for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The figures "1973", "1974", and "1975", wherever used in this act, shall mean that the appropriation or appropriations listed thereunder shall be available for the year ending June 30, 1973, June 30, 1974, and June 30, 1975, respectively.

APPROPRIATIONS

Sec. 2. **THE LEGISLATURE.** Subdivision 1. For the Senate Salaries, supplies, and expense.
1974... \$3,000,000. 1975... \$3,500,000.

Subd. 2. For the House of Representatives Salaries, supplies, and expense.
1974... \$4,400,000. 1975... \$5,900,000.

The above appropriations include funds for the standing committees of the senate and house of representatives.

The above appropriations include funds for printing and binding. The state senate and house of representatives may, as needed, utilize the services of the state printer.

In the above appropriations are included amounts for legislators' per diem living expenses (as distinguished from compensation) in the amount paid to members in the 68th session and in such additional amount as may be determined by the 69th session.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. Legislative Service Commission.
1974... \$177,360.

Subd. 4. State Claims Commission. 1974... \$20,000

Subd. 5. Legislative Building Commission.
1974... \$2,000

Subd. 6. Indian Affairs Commission.
1974... \$62,500. 1975... \$62,500.

This appropriation includes funds for payment of the expenses of the delegate to the Indian council meeting.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 7. Legislative Retirement Study Commission.
1974... \$130,000.

Subd. 8. Mississippi River Parkway Commission.
1974... \$5,000. 1975... \$5,000.

These amounts are appropriated from the trunk highway fund.

Subd. 9. General Contingent Account.
1974... \$1,175,000. 1975... \$875,000.

Should the appropriations for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

Subd. 10. Game and Fish Contingent Account.
1974... \$100,000.

This appropriation is from the game and fish fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of natural resources for activities which are financed from the game and fish fund.

Subd. 11. Motor Vehicle Contingent Account.
1974... \$150,000.

This appropriation is from the highway user tax distribution fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of public safety, motor vehicle services section, for salaries, supplies, and expense.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 12. Criminal Justice Contingent Account.
1974 . . . \$1,600,000.

The legislature shall designate an appropriate committee to study the application of these funds and to recommend to the legislature appropriate future action.

This appropriation is available to provide additional matching funds for the various state agencies and local governments for programs qualifying under the safe streets and omnibus crime control act of 1968, as amended.

The above funds shall not be available until the criminal justice state plan has been reviewed by the senate committee on finance and the house committee on appropriations. At least 30 days before action by the legislative advisory committee, the commission shall submit the individual project requests to the respective committees for review.

Subd. 13. Postage Contingent Account. 1974 . . . \$250,000

To be used by the commissioner of administration in supplementing the appropriations made for supplies and expense to the various state departments and agencies for any postage rate increases during the biennium ending June 30, 1975, where sufficient appropriations have not been made available therefor.

Of the above amount \$125,000 is appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund to meet the needs of the motor vehicle section of the department of public safety.

Subd. 14. Traffic Safety Contingent Account.
1974 . . . \$50,000.

This appropriation is from the trunk highway fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of public safety for traffic safety programs.

The appropriations in subdivisions 9 to 14 shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee.

Any unexpended balances remaining in subdivisions 10 through 14 the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 3. GOVERNOR.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense.

1974... \$489,500. 1975... \$492,500.

If the commissioner of public safety assigns a highway patrol officer as a personal aide to the governor below the rank of sergeant, such officer shall receive the rank and pay of a sergeant while on such assignment.

Subd. 2. Personal expenses connected with office.

1974... \$15,000. 1975... \$15,000.

Subd. 3. Governor's portrait. 1975... \$2,000

Subd. 4. Upper Great Lakes Regional Commission - state share.

1974... \$71,000. 1975... \$71,000.

This appropriation shall cancel if the federal support for the regional commission is withdrawn.

Subd. 5. Great Lakes Basin Commission - state share.

1974... \$26,000. 1975... \$18,000.

Subd. 6. Upper Mississippi River Basin Commission - state share.

1974... \$30,000. 1975... \$30,000.

Subd. 7. Missouri River Basin Commission - state share.

1973... \$3,950. 1974... \$8,200. 1975... \$8,200.

Sec. 4. STATE PLANNING AGENCY.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense.

1974... \$634,022. 1975... \$633,281.

The amount that may be expended from state funds for each subprogram or activity is as follows:

State Policy Development Subprogram

Issue Analysis. \$42,847. \$42,847

State, Local, Regional. \$22,359. \$22,359

Program Review and Coordination Subprogram

Federal Aid Review. \$21,228. \$21,228

State Program Review. \$13,572. \$13,572

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Planning Technical Assistance Subprogram

Planning Information. \$16,312. \$16,312
 Planning, Organization and Manpower Development.
 \$13,572. \$13,572

Functional Area Planning Subprogram

Comprehensive Health Planning. \$78,909. \$78,909
 Developmental Disabilities. \$17,531. \$17,531
 Environmental Planning. \$47,192. \$47,192
 Transportation Planning. \$44,065. \$44,065
 Human Resources Planning. \$21,184. \$21,184
 Developmental Disabilities Grants. -0-. -0-

Technical Assistance Subprogram

Planning Grant Administration. \$33,930. \$33,930
 Planning and Management Technical Assistance.
 \$34,800. \$34,800
 Local/Regional Training Assistance. \$57,192. \$57,192

Administration Activity Subprogram

Administration. \$166,329. \$165,588

The state planning director may transfer unexpended balances among the above activities. Such transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

The state auditor shall establish a single control account for the items listed in this section. The state planning agency shall maintain individual control accounts for the items listed in this section.

When instructed by the state planning agency to perform planning work, state agencies will be expected to use existing staff.

Subd. 2. Grants for Regional Development Commissions.

1974... \$400,000. 1975... \$400,000.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.396, the state planning officer may make available financial state assistance to regional development commissions for the fiscal years 1974 and 1975.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Not more than \$400,000 the first year shall be expended for state support of regional development commissions. The state planning agency shall distribute such funds on a proportional basis so that no regional development commission receives more funds in one year than the amount would be if all regional development commissions were organized.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 5. GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON CRIME PREVENTION AND CONTROL.

Salaries, supplies, and expense.

1974... \$50,000. 1975... \$50,000.

Approved Complement - 35

Sec. 6. GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON EMPLOYMENT OF HANDICAPPED PERSONS.

1974... \$51,513. 1975... \$51,863.

Sec. 7. LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR.

Subdivision 1. Salary and expenses.

1974... \$145,100. 1975... \$145,100.

Subd. 2. Personal expenses connected with office.

1974... \$2,000. 1975... \$2,000.

Sec. 8. STATE AUDITOR.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$505,795. 1975... \$505,795.

Approved Complement - 49

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$120,400. 1975... \$122,100.

Provided that the auditor's biennial report shall be printed in summary form notwithstanding any law to the contrary.

Subd. 3. Statewide accounting system.

1974... \$1,016,046. 1975... \$824,206.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 4. Contributory share of public employees retirement association for legislative members. 1973... \$204,62

Sec. 9. STATE TREASURER.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$223,370. 1975... \$223,370.
Approved Complement - 23

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$85,100. 1975... \$81,575.

Sec. 10. PUBLIC EXAMINER.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$463,754. 1975... \$463,754.
Approved Complement - 38

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$70,360. 1975... \$74,305.

Subd. 3. Public examiner's revolving fund.

1973... \$1,866.78. 1974... \$50,000.

This deficiency appropriation is to restore to the public examiner's revolving fund the amount not recoverable from an audit made of the Montevideo housing and redevelopment authority.

The appropriation for fiscal year 1974 is provided to finance a study of local government accounting systems, practices, and reporting.

The appropriations in this section provide complement and related expenses to perform for the legislature a post audit function upon request from the legislature.

Sec. 11. DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$8,841,000. 1975... \$8,841,000.
Approved Complement - 920

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$3,519,000. 1975... \$3,523,600.

Subd. 3. Tax assessors or deputies training.

1974... \$60,000. 1975... \$60,000.

The above appropriation includes expenses for collection of rural cooperative electric taxes. Taxes retained by department are to be deposited in the general fund.

The appropriations made by this section include sufficient moneys to carry out the ore estimate and classification functions previously performed by the university of Minnesota.

Sec. 12. TAX COURT.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$43,361. 1975... \$43,361.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$8,777. 1975... \$8,483.

Sec. 13. ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$788,747. 1975... \$811,947.

Approved Complement - 45

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$167,745. 1975... \$139,820.

Subd. 3. Special contingent appropriation.

1974... \$50,000.

This appropriation shall not be available for paying the costs of special legal, accounting, and investigative personnel retained in cases arising under Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 501.12 hereafter filed unless the attorney general shall decide in such a case that all the beneficiaries are not adequately represented, or that there is a likelihood that the purpose of the trust may be frustrated without his intervention and that the state has a substantial interest in carrying out the purpose of the trust.

✓ Subd. 4. Antitrust appropriation. 1974... \$200,000

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

This appropriation is for costs and expenses incurred by the attorney general in enforcing and making claims under state and federal antitrust laws.

The attorney general shall report on an annual basis the purpose for which the moneys appropriated by this subdivision are utilized. Such reports shall be made to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives, with the first report due August 15, 1974.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 5. Minnesota Peace Officers Training Board

(a) Salaries. 1974... \$34,400. 1975... \$34,500.
Approved Complement - 3

(b) Supplies and expense.
1974... \$23,715. 1975... \$23,067.

(c) Reimbursements to local government.
1974... \$300,000. 1975... \$300,000.

The appropriations made in subdivision 5, clause (c) shall only be expended for the payment of obligations incurred during the 1973-75 biennium.

Reimbursement for costs of substitute local protection while officers attend regular training courses.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Any unexpended balance in the milk and dairy investigation account on June 30, 1973, shall not cancel but shall be available for the biennium beginning July 1, 1973.

Sec. 14. DISTRICT COURT. To be disbursed by the state auditor

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense. 1973... \$54,221.
1974... \$2,100,000. 1975... \$2,100,000

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

Sec. 15. RETIRED SUPREME AND DISTRICT COURT JUDGES AND COMMISSIONERS. To be disbursed by the state auditor

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Salaries. 1973... \$71,436. 1974... \$379,000. 1975... \$379,000

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

This appropriation shall be used for the payment of salaries, retirement benefits, and survivorship benefits to retired supreme and district court judges, commissioners and widows of supreme and district court judges.

Sec. 16. SUPREME COURT.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$842,214. 1975... \$873,550.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$233,434. 1975... \$226,737.

Subd. 3. Commission on judicial standards.

1974... \$10,000.

Any unexpended balances remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 17. JUDICIAL COUNCIL. 1974... \$4,950

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 18. PUBLIC DEFENDER.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense.

1974... \$230,379. 1975... \$233,323.

Provided however that no portion of the funds appropriated shall be used for the defense of misdemeanors unless the city or county public defender, if any, shall refuse or be unable to defend and then only by order of the court.

Subd. 2. To provide civil legal services and to develop and explain grievance procedures to the prison inmate. 1974... \$100,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

This appropriation shall be reduced by an amount equal to the receipt of any federal grant in excess of \$60,000 for the biennium.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 19. REVISOR OF STATUTES.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974 .. \$217,992. 1975... \$217,992.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$50,366. 1975... \$50,331.

Subd. 3. Bill Drafting Salaries and Expenses.

1974... \$600,000.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 4. Printing Regular Session Laws.

1975... \$75,000.

These laws may be published and printed in the same manner as prescribed by Minnesota Statutes, Section 648.41, Subdivision 2.

Sec. 20. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION.

There is appropriated to the commissioner of administration the following amounts for the purposes so stipulated in this section and as indicated in the workpapers of the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Subdivision 1. General Operations and Management.

1974... \$7,876,625. 1975... \$7,819,450.

Of the amounts herein provided, \$11,424 each year is appropriated from the game and fish fund and \$576 each year is appropriated from the state airports fund for payroll preparation and employee statistics.

The department of administration shall be solely responsible for architectural services for the state college system except for dormitory food service, student union and campus master planning.

The amounts that may be expended from these funds for each program are as follows:

Budget Services.	\$294,390.	\$320,880
Management Services.	\$687,185.	\$614,840
General Services.	\$6,526,270.	\$6,518,530
General Support.	\$368,780.	\$365,200

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The commissioner of administration may transfer unexpended balances among the above programs. Such transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

The state auditor shall establish a single control account for the items listed in this subdivision. The department of administration shall maintain individual control accounts for the items listed in this subdivision.

The commissioner of administration shall submit to the senate finance committee and the house appropriations committee, not later than November 1, 1974, a detailed report of each management study made, recommendations made as a result of each study and changes instituted because of each study.

Any moneys appropriated for the salaries of state employees whose duties it is to perform cleaning services in and for state buildings shall be used by the commissioner of administration to contract and pay for such services if he determines that the contract method is more economical than having such services performed by state employees.

The commissioner of administration shall review and analyze fees collected by state departments and agencies. The commissioner shall prepare a report on those fees in which the cost of the collections of the fee appears excessive in relation to the amount of the fee collected. The report shall be submitted on or before November 15, 1974, to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the department of administration shall appraise and establish rental rates for all living accommodations provided by the state for its employees.

The commissioner of administration shall deposit in the state treasury and credit to the general fund all money collected from private tenants as rent from space in the capitol square building.

The commissioner of administration may lease portions of state owned buildings in the capitol complex, the capitol square building, and at 1246 University Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota, to state departments and agencies and charge rent therefor on the basis of space occupied, and, notwithstanding the provisions of any law to the contrary, all moneys collected as rents shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund.

The position of administrator of the employees merit award system may be in the classified or unclassified service.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

In the case of payrolls which are financed in whole or in part with federal funds, that portion of the cost of payroll preparation which is chargeable to federal funds shall be reimbursed to the department of administration from such federal funds, and such amounts as are necessary are hereby appropriated from such funds for that purpose. The cost of preparing payrolls for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by open, standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations or so called dedicated receipt accounts shall be reimbursed to the department of administration from such appropriations or dedicated receipt accounts and such amounts as are necessary are hereby appropriated from such appropriations and accounts for that purpose.

In the case of state departments, agencies, and institutions which are financed in whole or in part with federal funds, that portion of the cost of collecting social security contributions which is chargeable to federal funds shall be reimbursed from federal funds, and such amounts as are necessary are appropriated from such funds for that purpose.

The cost of collecting employees' social security contributions and the state's matching share for reimbursement to the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by open, standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations or so called dedicated receipt accounts shall be reimbursed to the state agency revolving fund from such appropriations or dedicated receipt accounts, and such amounts as are necessary are appropriated from such appropriations and accounts for that purpose.

Notwithstanding the provisions of any law to the contrary, the commissioner of administration may sell the state-owned property comprising the Owatonna state school in the manner which will realize the greatest return to the state. Such a sale, however, shall be made only after advertising the sale of the property and inviting sealed bids which shall be opened at the time specified and read aloud. The sale shall be made to the best bidder. The advertisement of such sale shall be made in local and national publications including but not limited to such publications as the Wall Street Journal and the New York Times. The state reserves the right to reject any and all bids.

Subd. 2. Ancillary Services Program.
 1974... \$108,440. 1975... \$131,090.

Subd. 3. University/State Information System.
 1974... \$350,000.

Sec. 21. BOARD OF INVESTMENT.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense.
 1974... \$367,304. 1975... \$365,559.
 Approved Complement - 17

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the board of investment may lease or purchase a duplicating machine.

Sec. 22. SECRETARY OF STATE.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.
 1974... \$187,672. 1975... \$187,672.
 Approved Complement - 20

Subd. 2. Supplies and Expense.
 1974... \$57,129. 1975... \$50,313.

Subd. 3. Printing Legislative Manual. 1975... \$90,922

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the appropriation in this subdivision shall be available until the legislative manual is printed and distributed.

Subd. 4. Publishing Constitutional Amendments.
 1975... \$18,180.

Subd. 5. Election Expense and Nomination Fees.
 1974... \$36,005. 1975... \$27,180.

Sec. 23. DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL SERVICE.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.
 1974... \$664,818. 1975... \$664,818.
 Approved Complement - 1974 - 71. 1975 - 64

The director is requested to report to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house the progress made in pilot job clarification projects for the purpose of determining whether the program should be financed in fiscal year 1975.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.
 1974... \$166,706. 1975... \$139,839.

Subd. 3. Management and Personnel Training Program

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Salaries, supplies, and expense.

1974... \$253,984. 1975... \$248,316.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 24. MUNICIPAL COMMISSION.

Salaries and supplies. 1974... \$78,616. 1975... \$78,626

Approved Complement - 3

Sec. 25. MILITARY AFFAIRS.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$1,316,520. 1975... \$1,319,830.

Approved Complement - 1974 - 177. 1975 - 178

Plus such additional personnel as may be financed entirely from federal funds for the period federal funds are available.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$811,895. 1975... \$844,285.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this act or any other law, the portion of appropriations made in this section which relate to armory maintenance and repairs shall be available for allotment, encumbrance and expenditure upon passage of this act, for the purpose of financing federal reimbursement contracts.

Sec. 26. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$2,295,940. 1975... \$2,299,320.

Approved Complement - 202

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$415,440. 1975... \$409,075.

The appropriations in this section include moneys for those activities previously financed from the real estate revolving account, the transfer of the regulation of collection agencies as imposed upon the department by this act, and the duties required of the agency relating to franchise regulation if an act conferring these duties is enacted by the 68th session of the legislature.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 27. PUBLIC SERVICE.

Subdivision 1. Administration

(a) Salaries. 1974... \$1,333,696. 1975... \$1,333,696
 Approved Complement - 122

(b) Supplies and expense.
 1974... \$331,765. 1975... \$267,565.

Subd. 2. Grain Inspection

(a) Salaries. 1974... \$2,184,088. 1975... \$2,184,088

(b) Supplies and expense.
 1974... \$175,000. 1975... \$175,000.

(c) Overtime. 1974... \$300,000. 1975... \$300,000

The department of public service is directed to adjust its schedule of fees before the end of each fiscal year to provide that the initial charge made for services to be rendered during the next fiscal year shall be sufficient to provide an income during the latter fiscal year equal to the amount of the expenditures for that year for salaries, overtime, expenses, which shall include without limitation an amount for state retirement and social security contributions. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be more than 103 percent of such expenditures for that year, the department in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of such expenditure less the amount of such excess over 103 percent of the expenditures first referred to herein. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be less than the expenditures for that year, the department in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of such expenditure for the latter year plus the amount of the difference between the expenditure for the year first referred to herein and the total income from such fees during that year, and plus three percent of the total expenditure for both the latter and the first year referred to herein. Such schedule of fees shall provide that any elevator, mill, or other department business requesting the weighing or inspection service, shall pay a minimum charge per hour for each employee requested or assigned. Any fees earned by such employee shall be credited against the charge made therefor. Such minimum charge shall be assessed only after taking into consideration all fees earned and all hours charged. Excess fees earned over hours charged shall be carried forward from month to month during any one fiscal year. When deemed necessary by the department, a charge for actual overtime costs may be made.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 28. LABOR AND INDUSTRY.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$1,967,781. 1975... \$2,019,992.
Approved Complement - 211

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$384,198. 1975... \$402,609.

Sec. 29. LIQUOR CONTROL.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$315,872. 1975... \$315,872.
Approved Complement - 28

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$62,823. 1975... \$59,543.

Sec. 30. BUREAU OF MEDIATION SERVICES.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$383,898. 1975... \$383,898.
Approved Complement - 25

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$91,407. 1975... \$86,732.

Sec. 31. DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense.

1974... \$950,000. 1975... \$952,000.
Approved Complement - 39

Not more than one research project may be undertaken. The commissioner shall report to the next legislative session specific requests for research projects for the next biennium.

Subd. 2. Advertising and publications.

1974... \$300,000. 1975... \$300,000.

Not more than \$15,000 each year may be expended for promotional expense.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. Regional matching.

1974... \$190,000. 1975... \$190,000.

Subd. 4. Port Authority of Duluth - final state appropriation.

1974... \$80,000. 1975... \$80,000

These amounts are appropriated to the port authority of Duluth, organized under Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 458.09 to 458.19, and shall be used for the promotion of seaway trade after consultation with the department of economic development.

The port authority of Duluth shall file a report of activities financed by this appropriation with the legislature on or before November 1, 1974.

Sec. 32. DEPARTMENT OF AERONAUTICS.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$410,000. 1975... \$412,000.

Approved Complement - 33

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$88,260. 1975... \$92,300.

Subd. 3. Aeronautics proceedings.

1974... \$7,500. 1975... \$7,500.

This amount is available for the employment of consultants, expert witness fees, preparation of exhibits and other costs pertaining to aeronautics proceedings.

Subd. 4. Aeronautics safety and education.

1974... \$20,000. 1975... \$20,000.

Subd. 5. Airport construction and improvements

(a) Key system airports. 1974... \$2,850,000

(b) Secondary system airports. 1974... \$1,142,500

(c) State landing strips. 1974... \$1,299,430

The appropriations made in this subdivision shall be expended only for grant-in-aid programs for airports which are not state owned.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

These appropriations are to be expended in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 360.305, Subdivision 4(1), (2), (4), and (5), as amended.

The commissioner of aeronautics may transfer unexpended balances between the above items with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee.

Subd. 6. Navigational Aids. 1974... \$800,000

Subd. 7. Striping airport runways. 1974... \$48,150

Reimbursements from municipalities for striping runways shall be deposited in the state airport fund.

Subd. 8. Construction and operation of state-owned airports. 1974... \$1,310,302

At state-owned airports at Thief River Falls and Orr, the commissioner of aeronautics is directed to complete construction as proposed; including land acquisition, buildings, security fencing, paving, lighting and electronic aeronautical guidance systems. The commissioner is further directed to take whatever steps are necessary to return these airports to their respective communities, counties or regions at no cost to the state and report his progress to the finance committee of the senate and the appropriations committee of the house of representatives by January 15, 1974. It is legislative intent that the airports be returned to the respective communities, counties or regions at no cost to the state.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 360.021, Subdivision 1 or any other law to the contrary, the commissioner of aeronautics shall acquire no additional airports, nor shall he establish any additional state-owned airports during the biennium ending June 30, 1975.

No moneys shall be expended by the commissioner of aeronautics under the appropriations made by subdivisions 5, 6, and 7, or any other law, for land acquisition, or for the construction, improvement, maintenance of airports, or for air navigation facilities for an airport, unless the governmental unit involved has or is establishing a zoning authority for that airport, and such authority has made a good faith showing that it is in the process of and will complete with due diligence, an airport zoning ordinance in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 360.061 to 360.074.

The commissioner of aeronautics is directed to make maximum use of zoning and easements to eliminate runway and other potential airport hazards rather than land acquisition in fee.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Any unexpended balance remaining in subdivisions 5 to 8 the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

The amounts appropriated by this section are from the state airport fund.

Sec. 33. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE. There is appropriated to the commissioner of agriculture the following amounts for the purposes so stipulated in this section and as indicated in the workpapers of the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

1974... \$2,363,115. 1975... \$2,371,248

The amounts that may be expended from the above appropriations for each program are as follows:

Marketing Services and Marketing Development

\$317,974. \$319,339

Food and Livestock Regulation and Development

\$735,582. \$737,350

Development and Protection of Agricultural Resources

\$752,509. \$753,709

General Support. \$557,050. \$560,850

The commissioner of agriculture with the approval of the commissioner of administration, may transfer unexpended balances among the above programs. Such transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

The state auditor shall establish a single control account for the items listed in this section. The department of agriculture shall maintain individual control accounts for the items listed in this section.

The standing appropriation made by Laws 1963, Chapter 832, Section 4, in the sum of \$75,000 per biennium for the administration and enforcement of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Chapter 33, is rescinded and shall no longer be of any force and effect.

The commissioner of administration shall require that the service fees charged for fruit and vegetable inspection and certification will be reviewed and, if necessary, adjusted each six months to the end that such fees shall insofar as it is practicable cover the cost of the services rendered. All moneys collected by authority of

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section-21.53, and all balances now on hand received from such source are appropriated for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 21.47 to 21.58. All moneys collected by authority of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 27.07, for services rendered pursuant to written contracts are appropriated for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Chapter 27, and the moneys so collected and appropriated shall be in addition to and not in substitution for the sums appropriated in this section. All funds, sums of money or other resources paid or furnished to the department of agriculture, dairy and food, by the federal government shall be credited to and become a part of the various appropriations provided for in this section, and all such funds, sums of money or other resources so credited to the various appropriations shall be in addition to and not in substitution for any sum appropriated or otherwise made available by this section.

Provided that the fees for services performed for poultry breeding and inspection shall be fixed by the commissioner of administration at the beginning of each fiscal year and reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at the end of each six month period in order that the fees prescribed shall insofar as practicable cover the cost of all services rendered.

The department of agriculture shall submit a semi-annual report on the collection of all license and inspection fees to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives. The first report shall be submitted on or before February 15, 1974.

Any butter purchased may be sold if marketable under the laws of this state.

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the person hired to promote market development shall be in the unclassified service and shall work only at promoting market development.

The commissioner of agriculture shall submit financial reports of the actual and anticipated expenditures of his department to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives. Such reports shall be structured on an activity basis and shall include all moneys under the control of the commissioner and such additional information as may be requested by the committees to which the reports are made. The first report shall be submitted not later than February 15, 1974, and thereafter such reports shall be made on a quarterly basis.

Sec. 34. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. There is appropriated to the commissioner of public safety the following

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

amounts for the following purposes, said amounts to be under the control of and to be expended by direction of the commissioner of public safety.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$15,283,864. 1975... \$15,301,959.

Approved Complement - 1974 - \$1,388. 1975 - \$1,389

Of the amounts provided in subdivision 1, \$11,605,614 for the first year and \$11,611,909 for the second year is appropriated from the trunk highway fund for traffic safety programs, and \$1,456,227 each year is appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund for administration of motor vehicle laws.

Of the amount provided in subdivision 1, \$2,222,023 for the first year and \$2,233,823 for the second year is appropriated from the general fund.

The above approved complement includes a total of 123 for the bureau of criminal apprehension and a total of 504 for all unclassified patrol officers and supervisors of the highway patrol. These respective complements shall not be exceeded during the biennium. Nothing in this provision is intended to limit the authority of the commissioner of public safety to transfer personnel, with the approval of the commissioner of administration, between the various units and divisions within this subdivision, providing that the above complement restrictions are not exceeded in the indicated units. If the personnel in the above restricted complements are transferred to other units or divisions of the department, the above complements shall be reduced accordingly.

No new highway patrol supervisory positions shall be established, with the exception of special duty assigned ranks for the length of assignment only.

The legislature recommends that the commissioner of public safety merge the fire marshal division with the bureau of criminal apprehension if able to reduce administrative costs and to improve the investigational capability in the arson area.

Subd. 2. Weight Scale and Motor Vehicle Inspection.

1974... \$380,000. 1975... \$380,000.

The personnel involved in the support of the weight scale and spot motor vehicle inspection programs shall be provided by the department of highways. This appropriation is from the trunk highway fund.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$8,541,100. 1975... \$8,704,600.

Of the amounts provided in subdivision 3, \$5,914,600 for the first year and \$5,814,550 for the second year are appropriated from the trunk highway fund for traffic safety programs.

Of the amounts provided in subdivision 3, \$1,563,554, for the first year and \$1,479,124 for the second year are appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund for administration of motor vehicle laws.

Of the amount provided in subdivision 3, \$1,062,946 for the first year and \$1,410,926 for the second year is appropriated from the general fund.

The state auditor is directed to transfer on a quarterly basis the appropriation made from the trunk highway fund in subdivisions 1, 2, and 3.

Subd. 4. Sheriffs Teletype Operations.

1974... \$325,266. 1975... \$325,266.

Approved Complement - 14

Subd. 5. Police Schools

(a) Supplies and expense.

1974... \$120,847. 1975... \$123,868.

Of the amounts provided in subdivision 4, \$12,000 for the first year and \$12,000 for the second year are appropriated from the trunk highway fund for highway safety activities.

Subd. 6. License plates

(a) Salaries. 1974... \$162,412. 1975... \$162,412

Approved Complement - 12

(b) Supplies and expense.

1974... \$1,362,175. 1975... \$1,332,175.

The amounts provided in subdivision 6, clauses (a) and (b) are appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund.

Subd. 7. Fire Services — Advisory Council.

1974... \$7,500. 1975... \$7,500.

Subd. 8. State Aids for Air Warning.

1974... \$30,000. 1975... \$30,000.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The department of public safety is authorized to make grants-in-aid to local political subdivisions, to provide for up to 25 percent of the cost of air warning systems.

Sec. 35. **DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES.** There is appropriated to the commissioner of natural resources the following amounts for the purposes so stipulated in this section and as indicated in the workpapers of the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives. 1974... \$21,939,570. 1975... \$21,981,431

Approved Complement - 1,200

The amount that may be expended from these funds for each program is as follows:

Protection and Development of Land, Water and Wildlife Resources

\$11,312,289. \$11,408,190

Public Use of Recreational Resources

\$4,172,125. \$4,165,580

Economic Distribution and Utilization of Public and Private Resources

\$1,966,515. \$1,943,255

General Support and Management Services

\$4,488,641. \$4,464,406

The commissioner of natural resources may transfer unexpended balances among the above programs. Such transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

The state auditor shall establish a single control account for the items listed in this section. The department of natural resources shall maintain individual control accounts for the items listed in this section.

Of the amounts herein provided, \$11,543,492 for the first year and \$11,495,157 for the second year are appropriated from the general fund; \$9,846,078 for the first year and \$9,936,274 for the second year are appropriated from the game and fish fund; and \$550,000 each year is appropriated from the wildlife acquisition account.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

In addition to the amounts herein appropriated, all moneys credited to the game and fish fund under Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 296.421, Subdivision 4, are appropriated to the commissioner of natural resources for the acquisition, improvement, development and maintenance of sites for public access to public waters and for lake improvement.

The appropriations in this section include sufficient moneys for payments in lieu of taxes to local units of government on wetlands for wildlife habitat.

The department may publish not more than six issues of the conservation volunteer during each fiscal year.

The commissioner of natural resources shall submit financial reports of the actual and anticipated expenditures of his department to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives. Such reports shall be structured on an activity basis and shall include all moneys under the control of the commissioner and such additional information as may be requested by the committees to which the reports are made. The first report shall be submitted not later than February 15, 1974, and thereafter such reports shall be made on a quarterly basis.

Sec. 36. MINNESOTA WATER RESOURCES BOARD.

Salaries, supplies and expense. 1974... \$55,274. 1975... \$54,-
726

All hearings of the water resources board shall be solely in the performance of expressed statutory duties.

Sec. 37. POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense.
1974... \$1,684,730. 1975... \$1,820,722.
Approved Complement - 153

The agency is hereby authorized up to 20 additional positions upon the approval by the commissioner of administration of the agency's work program, priorities, and proposed job assignments. Such financing as may be required shall be from the general contingent account and shall be authorized prior to the employment of any of these additional employees.

Subd. 2. Additional special studies. 1974... \$140,000

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The agency is authorized and directed to negotiate with the federal government, or any agency, bureau, or department thereof, for the purpose of securing or obtaining any grants of assistance in the completion of these studies.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Health will continue to render such staff services as agency may require from time to time through health's division of environmental health, and health is to be reimbursed from this appropriation for the cost thereof.

On or before June 30, 1973, agency through its executive director will make and submit to the governor for approval an interdepartmental agreement, but if agency and health do not so agree at the time required, the matters to be covered by the agreement will be determined by executive order. The matters so to be covered by agreement or order are: (1) adequate exchange between agency and health of information in the health aspects of the work of each; (2) staff services and facilities required by agency to be furnished by health; (3) basis of reimbursement to health for services and facilities to agency. This agreement may be modified from time to time by agency and health with approval of the governor, and by executive order if the arrangement is effected by order, and the agreement or order, as the case may be, will be followed by the authorities involved in disbursing this appropriation.

The amounts provided in subdivisions 1 and 2 are sufficient to fulfill all duties imposed upon the agency by the 1973 legislature.

Prior to the holding of any public hearings, the purpose for which being the establishment of odor control regulations which would apply to agriculture, the agency shall notify the appropriate committees of the legislature.

Subd. 3. Automobile recycling.
1974... \$800,000. 1975... \$800,000.

Sec. 38. LIVESTOCK SANITARY BOARD.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.
1974... \$516,756. 1975... \$541,317.
Approved Complement - 48

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.
1974... \$198,438. 1975... \$233,605.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. Indemnities. 1974... \$100,000

No payment for less than \$1 for indemnities may be made.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 4. Field Laboratories.

1974... \$67,000. 1975... \$67,000.

For the operation of field laboratories for the testing of poultry, including turkeys, for pullorum and other diseases.

Subd. 5. Contingent Account. 1974... \$150,000

The funds appropriated in subdivision 5 shall be transferred to the various accounts of the livestock sanitary board at the request of the executive secretary of the board. Upon receipt of the request, the commissioner of administration shall certify to the state auditor the amounts to be transferred and the accounts into which the funds shall be transferred. Funds so transferred are hereby appropriated.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 39. HUMAN RIGHTS.

Salaries, supplies, and expense.

1974... \$399,800. 1975... \$381,830.

Approved Complement - 27

Sec. 40. WAR VETERANS AFFAIRS.

Subdivision 1. Salaries.

1974... \$371,931. 1975... \$371,931.

Approved Complement - 41

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.

1974... \$67,072. 1975... \$68,783.

Subd. 3. Veterans relief fund.

1974... \$910,000. 1975... \$960,000.

The Minnesota public relief advisory committee is hereby continued for the purposes of this subdivision.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

None of the funds appropriated in this subdivision shall be transferred for the use of veterans' rest camps.

Subd. 4. War veterans and war orphans education aid.
1974... \$40,000. 1975... \$45,000.

To be expended pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 197.75.

Subd. 5. Headstones, markers, and sockets for soldiers and sailors graves. 1974... \$10,000.

Any unexpended balances remaining in subdivisions 3 to 5 the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 41. **STATE LAW LIBRARY.** Subdivision 1.
Salaries. 1974... \$88,624. 1975... \$88,624.
Approved Complement - 8

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.
1974... \$57,945. 1975... \$60,558.

Subd. 3. Books and binding. 1974... \$120,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 42. **STATE ZOOLOGICAL BOARD.**

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies, and expense.
1974... \$168,179. 1975... \$324,006.

Sec. 43. **NATURAL RESOURCES ACCELERATION.** Subdivision 1. Minnesota Resources Commission together with any sums received as grants-in-aid from federal sources and any sums granted by private sources to carry out the purposes of the commission. Such moneys shall be available to the commission until expended. 1974... \$150,000

The commission during the 1973-75 biennium shall review the work programs and progress reports required under subdivision 14 of this section and report their findings and recommendations to the committee on finance for the senate and the committee on appropriations for the house of representatives. The commission may prepare in cooperation with the committee on taxes a report to the 69th session of the legislature regarding payment in lieu of

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

taxes on state and federally owned lands. The commission may also prepare a report to the 69th session of the legislature pertaining to the recodification and simplification of the laws and statutes pertaining to the Minnesota outdoor recreation and resource commission and the Minnesota resources commission.

Subd. 2. Department of Administration

- a. Acquisition of state recreation lands and trails.
1974... \$2,000,000.

To be expended in accordance with the purposes and criteria of the Minnesota outdoor recreation act of 1973 if approved by the legislature and/or according to the priorities established in project 80. These funds shall only be expended for lands within the authorized or designated boundaries of state parks, state recreation areas, state monuments, state waysides, state trails, state wild, scenic and recreational rivers, state scientific and natural areas, and the Sand Dunes state forest.

- b. Acquisition of land - memorial hardwood forest.
1974... \$350,000.
- c. Acquisition of scenic easements - Lower St. Croix recreational riverway. 1974... \$275,000.
- d. Acquisition of spawning areas. 1974... \$50,000
- e. Acquisition of key deer yards. 1974... \$30,000
- f. Topographic mapping - final appropriation.
1974... \$1,060,000.
- g. Grants-in-aid to local units of government.
1974... \$2,750,000.

This appropriation is to pay up to 50 percent of the total cost or 50 percent of the local share if federal matching funds are used, of long term lease, acquisition and development for recreational projects for the purposes described in Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 23 as amended by Laws 1969, Chapter 1139, subdivision 7, Clause g.

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary these grants are not contingent upon the matching of federal grants.

The state office of local and urban affairs will administer the natural resources and land and water grants-in-aid to local units of government.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

This appropriation shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee.

- h. Grants-in-aid for regional recreational and natural areas. 1974... \$6,000,000.

The state office of local and urban affairs will administer the natural resources and land and water grants-in-aid programs to local units of government and public educational institutions.

\$2,000,000 of this appropriation shall be reserved for projects outside of the jurisdiction of the metropolitan council.

This appropriation is available to pay up to 100 percent of the local share for development, acquisition and lease of land for recreation areas, natural areas and open space serving a regional need to counties, local units of government, special units of government and public educational institutions authorized to acquire, maintain and operate recreational and natural areas; provided that the state share shall not exceed 75 percent of the total acquisition for any project.

Priorities for use of funds will be given to projects eligible for federal funding and which are consistent with priorities established by regional recreation and open space plans.

- i. Iron range interpretive center. 1974... \$500,000

This money is available when there is evidence that other financing shall be available to complete the project.

- j. Minneapolis public library - Environmental information center. 1974... \$100,000.

Subject to the conditions of Laws 1971, Chapter 864, Section 3.

- k. Rainy River junior college - Voyageurs national park seminar. 1974... \$5,000.

Subd. 3. Department of Economic Development
Innovative program funding. 1974... \$50,200

Subd. 4. Department of Education

- a. FFA stocking of upland game birds. 1974... \$60,000

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- b. Minnesota Environmental Education Council.
1974... \$100,000.

Subd. 5. Governor

- For the Minnesota bicentennial committee.
1974... \$200,000.

Subd. 6. Department of Health

- a. Abandoned well location and sealing. 1974... \$10,600
b. Ground water quality program. 1974... \$86,240

Subd. 7. Minnesota Historical Society

- a. Fort Snelling restoration. 1974... \$1,071,500
b. Historic sites program. 1974... \$345,000
 Site engineering. \$35,000
 Historic site interpretation. \$100,000
 Historic archaeology. \$60,000
 Regional research libraries. \$50,000
 Curriculum materials on Minnesota history. \$25,000
 Traveling historical exhibits. \$50,000
 Map restoration. \$25,000
c. Grand Mound interpretive center. 1974... \$150,000

The Minnesota historical society is hereby authorized to establish and collect such fees as it may deem reasonable for admission to the state-owned sites under its control. All such fees that are collected from the operation of these state-owned sites shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general fund.

The Minnesota historical society is exempted from the competitive bidding procedures of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Chapter 16.07, in its completion of these projects.

The appropriations made in subdivision 7 of this section shall be subject to the allotment and encumbrance provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Chapter 16.

Subd. 8. Department of Natural Resources

- a. State land recreation development.
1974... \$3,400,000.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

To be expended in accordance with the provisions of the Minnesota outdoor recreation act of 1973 if approved by the legislature and/or in accordance with the recommendations of project 80. These funds shall only be expended for development within the authorized or designated boundaries of state parks, state recreation areas, state monuments, state waysides, state trails, state wild, scenic and recreational rivers and state scientific and natural areas.

Of the above amount, \$1,900,000 is appropriated from the state parks development account.

The commissioner of natural resources will review the proposed expenditures from this appropriation against priorities established by project 80 in consultation with the legislative building commission or its successor.

- b. Interpretive services program. 1974... \$134,800
- c. Spawning land development. 1974... \$50,000
- d. Operation pheasant. 1974... \$200,000
- e. Stream improvement. 1974... \$50,000
- f. Development of artificial spawning reefs for walleyes.
1974... \$40,000.
- g. Watershed studies and reports. 1974... \$150,000
- h. Ground water surveys, sand plains areas.
1974... \$50,000

Of the amount appropriated not less than \$40,000 shall be for grants-in-aid.

- i. Environmental review. 1974... \$37,500
- j. Remote Sensing Program. 1974... \$25,000
- k. Lower St. Croix river resource management plan.
1974... \$40,000
- l. Melrose dam repair project. 1974... \$100,000

This appropriation is available to pay up to 50 percent of the total cost of repair or reconstruction.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- m. Clearwater county - First and second lake recreation project. 1974... \$10,000.
- n. Planning, protection and development of scenic rivers and trails. 1974... \$100,000.
- o. Forest roads. 1974... \$100,000.

Subd. 9. State Planning Agency

- a. State land use planning. 1974... \$380,000.

The study is to be done in cooperation with the affected state agencies and coordinated with local units of government and regional development commissions.

- b. Voyageurs park peripheral plan. 1974... \$75,000
- c. Voyageurs area soils survey. 1974... \$40,000.
- d. Land use control and protection - St. Louis and Koochiching counties. 1974... \$60,000.
- e. Soils, surficial and subsurface data collection and mapping. 1974... \$100,000.

The university of Minnesota, the Minnesota geologic survey, the department of natural resources and the state planning agency are required to develop a coordinated system of priorities and assignment of agency responsibilities before these funds are obligated.

- f. Copper nickel study. 1974... \$100,000.

The department of natural resources, the university of Minnesota, and the state planning agency will report to the legislature on the economic needs and problems related to the development of a copper nickel industry in Minnesota and environmental impact of the various development proposals.

Subd. 10. State College Board

Southwest college regional environmental program.
1974... \$50,000.

Subd. 11. Regents of the University of Minnesota

- a. Prehistoric archaeology. 1974... \$45,600.
- b. Limnological research - final appropriation.
1974... \$35,000.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

c. Energy extraction from solid wastes. 1974... \$90,000

Subd. 12. Professional Services

a. Department of natural resources. 1974... \$534,500.

b. State planning agency. 1974... \$80,000.

c. Department of administration - land acquisition.
1974... \$315,000.

Subd. 13. It shall be a condition of acceptance of the appropriations made by this section and specified by this subdivision that the agency or entity receiving the appropriation shall submit work programs and semi-annual progress reports in such form as may be determined by the Minnesota resources commission for the following projects: for the projects authorized in subdivisions 2b, 2c, 2h, 3, 4, 6b, and 7b, provided that no reports shall be required for site engineering or map restoration, subdivisions 8b, 8d, 8h, 8j, 8k, 8n, 9, 10, 11b, and 11c.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year from appropriations made in this section shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 14. Natural Resource Federal Reimbursement Account

Reimbursements and matching funds received from the federal government for expenditures of appropriations made for the purposes described in Minnesota Statutes 1971, Chapter 86, shall in the first instance be credited to a federal receipt account by the state agency receiving such reimbursements and matching funds.

Any state department or agency, including the Minnesota historical society and the university of Minnesota, who receive reimbursements for expenditures made under appropriations in this section; from Laws 1971, Section 48; from Laws 1969, Chapter 879, Section 4, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4, and 5; or from Laws 1969, Chapter 1139, Section 48, shall transfer such reimbursements to the natural resources reimbursement account. Funds so transferred are appropriated for the purpose of that account. This provision shall not apply to federal aid reimbursements received under Minnesota Statutes, Section 6.40.

Any and all federal reimbursements earned under expenditures made from appropriations for natural resources acceleration for the period from July 1, 1963 through June 30, 1969, shall be deposited

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

to the general fund, provided that the state appropriation was used initially to finance the federal share of project costs.

There is established a maximum balance of \$1,000,000 to be retained for expenditure from this account. At any time that the undisbursed balance of the account exceeds the established maximum by an amount equal to or greater than \$100,000, the state auditor is directed to cancel the full amount of the excess to the general fund.

This appropriation is available for the purposes of land acquisition as described in subdivision 2 of this section, state land recreation development as described in subdivision 8 of this section, and acquisition and development of historic sites by the state of Minnesota, the Minnesota historical society, or the university of Minnesota, when such acquisition or development is deemed to be of an emergency or critical nature.

All requests for allocation from the account must be accompanied by a certification signed jointly by the state planning officer and the bureau of planning of the department of natural resources, showing a review of the application against the state recreation plan or project 80. Copies of such certification must be submitted to the appropriate legislative committees and commissions.

The appropriations made under the above paragraphs shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee.

Sec. 44. **WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION.** 1973... \$229,794.92

To be transferred by the state auditor to the department of labor and industry compensation revolving fund, in payment of obligations incurred by the following agencies in the amounts as indicated:

Administration.	\$26,377.48
Agriculture.	\$4,514.02
Auditor.	\$260.50
Civil Service.	\$196.32
Commerce.	\$186.67
Economic Development.	\$2,285.61
Governor's Committee on the Employment of Handicapped Persons.	\$15.90
Judicial.	\$6,255.55
Labor and Industry.	\$5,647.87
Legislature.	\$250.81

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Military Affairs. \$7,034.40
 Natural Resources. \$150,233.61
 Public Defender. \$5,399.60
 Public Examiner. \$935.53
 Public Safety. \$15,436.11
 Public Service. \$4,764.94

Of the amount appropriated \$30,965.85 shall be paid from the game and fish fund.

Sec. 45. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION.

1973... \$476,555.09.

In reimbursement of unemployment compensation benefits paid for former employees of the following:

Agriculture. \$17,543.74
 Commerce. \$8,814.44
 Economic Development. \$2,994.09
 Indian Affairs. \$1,664.00
 Natural Resources. \$441,496.64
 Public Service. \$4,042.18

Of the amount appropriated \$120,743.70 shall be paid from the game and fish fund.

Sec. 46. UNOBLIGATED BALANCES. The unobligated balance on hand as of June 30, 1973, June 30, 1974, and June 30, 1975, in the several appropriations and accounts for each of the state departments or divisions for which an appropriation is made herein out of the general fund are hereby cancelled into said general fund as of June 30, 1973, June 30, 1974, and June 30, 1975, and the unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1973, June 30, 1974, and June 30, 1975, appropriated out of any other funds, shall be cancelled into the fund from which they are appropriated as of June 30, 1973, June 30, 1974, and June 30, 1975. The provisions of this section shall not apply where otherwise indicated in this act or to aid, contributions, or reimbursements received from the federal government by the state; and all such federal aid, contributions, or reimbursements are hereby reappropriated for the purpose of supplementing the appropriations herein provided.

Sec. 47. MISAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS. It shall be illegal for any state officer or head of any state department or any employee thereof to use moneys appropriated by this act, or fees

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

collected, for any other purpose than the purpose for which such moneys have been appropriated and any such act by any such person shall be cause for immediate removal from the office or position he holds with the government of the state, provided, however, that funds may be transferred to the credit of the state employees retirement fund and used for the purposes thereof as provided by law.

Sec. 48. TRANSFER OF FUNDS, STATE AUDITOR. The state auditor is hereby authorized and directed to transfer to the general fund in the state treasury, all moneys credited to any fund established in connection with the payment of certificates of indebtedness when the purposes for which the act authorizing such certificates have been accomplished.

Subdivision 1. There is hereby transferred to the general fund, from the highway user tax distribution fund, the sum of \$1,289,916.86 to reimburse the general fund for the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes and the cost of bond premiums during the 1971-73 biennium.

There is hereby transferred to the general fund, from the highway user tax distribution fund, the sum of \$4,989.77 to correct an underestimate in the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes during the 1969-71 biennium.

There is hereby transferred to the general fund, from the highway user tax distribution fund, the sum of \$46,246.71 to reimburse the general fund for functions performed by the office of the state treasurer in mailing gas tax refunds during the 1971-73 biennium.

There is hereby transferred from the general to the highway user tax distribution fund, the sum of \$882.74 to correct an overestimate in the cost of mailing gas tax refunds during the 1969-71 biennium.

There is hereby transferred to the general fund, from the computer services revolving fund, the sum of \$710,000 to reimburse the general fund for the costs of remodeling.

There is hereby transferred to the general fund the following sums to reimburse the general fund for amounts transferred out of the general contingent account for the following purposes:

(a) From the state airports fund for the department of aeronautics, supplies and expense, for the year ending June 30, 1973... \$3,600.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

(b) From the state airports fund for the department of aeronautics, striping airport runways, for the year ending June 30, 1973... \$10,000.

(c) From the state airports fund for the department of aeronautics, salaries, for the year ending June 30, 1973... \$8,750.

Sec. 49. Any moneys made available to any state department or agency by this act of appropriation, transfer or otherwise for the payment of salaries is a source of revenue to such department or agency under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 355.50 and 352.04, Subdivision 5.

Sec. 50. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, state departments and agencies may, with the approval of the commissioner of administration, eliminate authorized positions and use the moneys for purchase of interdepartmental tabulating services from the department of administration, information systems division, or for the leasing or purchase of equipment if such is found to be more economical than filling of authorized positions. Such moneys are hereby authorized to be transferred to the supplies and expense account of the department. Such moneys transferred are hereby appropriated for this purpose.

The commissioner of administration, in reviewing the proposals, shall also review the documentation presented indicating the analysis of the cost benefit and reduction of personnel or other savings or benefit that will occur with the computerization or further computerization of the systems involved in the proposal. Upon implementation of the proposal, the complement shall be reduced and the indicated savings reserved and cancelled.

Sec. 51. The commissioner of administration shall endeavor to make maximum utilization of available space in state institutions by not renewing the leases of departments renting space from non-public property owners near state institutions which have available space. He shall encourage departments to lease such space from the institution at a rate to be determined by the commissioner of administration. Any remodeling required shall be performed by the maintenance forces of the institution providing the space if at all possible. Receipts from such rentals or leases are hereby reappropriated to the department providing the space. The commissioner shall report to the 69th legislature concerning these instructions.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 52. [15.16] Subd. 5. **OBTAINING RECOMMENDATION.** No control of state-owned lands shall be transferred between state departments without first consulting the legislative building commission, or other appropriate legislative committee or committees and obtaining a recommendation thereon. The recommendation shall be advisory only. Failure to obtain a prompt recommendation shall be deemed a negative recommendation.

Sec. 53. Notwithstanding any provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 16.17, or Extra Session Laws 1971, Chapter 3, Section 53, or any other law to the contrary, the unencumbered balance remaining on June 30, 1973, of the \$3,480,000 appropriated by Extra Session Laws 1971, Chapter 3, Section 48, Subdivision 6, Clause (a) (1), shall not lapse but shall remain available for expenditure for the projects specified below:

- (a) Gooseberry Falls state park, sewage disposal
- (b) Helmer Myre, visitor center and water chlorination system
- (c) Interstate Park, sewer system
- (d) Itasca state park, Douglas Lodge sewer system rehabilitation
- (e) Jay Cooke state park, sewer system and water system
- (f) Lake Carlos state park, sewer system
- (g) William O'Brien state park, sewer lagoon.

Sec. 54. Subdivision 1. [332.311] **TRANSFER OF ADMINISTRATIVE FUNCTIONS.** The powers, duties, and responsibilities of the department of labor and industry under Minnesota Statutes, Sections 332.31 to 332.45 relating to collection agencies are hereby transferred to and imposed upon the section of consumer services in the department of commerce.

Subd. 2. In the next and subsequent editions of Minnesota Statutes, the revisor of statutes shall make such changes in terminology as may be required to record the powers, duties, and responsibilities which are transferred by this section.

Sec. 55. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 3.102, is amended to read:

3.102 INTERIM LIVING EXPENSES. Each member of the legislature shall be reimbursed for his expenses when he is required to attend meetings of standing committees, commissions, or is engaged in other legislative activity when the legislature is not in session. The amount of such reimbursement shall not exceed \$25

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

\$33 per day as a per diem expense allowance for all expenses incurred except travel. He shall also be reimbursed for his travel expenses in the same amount as state employees are reimbursed for such travel.

Reimbursements to members of the legislature for out-of-state meetings or other legislative activity shall be in the same amounts as state employees are reimbursed for such out-of-state expenses.

Expenses for members of the legislature are payable in the manner and in the amount designated by the senate committee on rules and administration as to members of the senate and by the committee on rules and legislative administration as to members of the house of representatives.

The expense allowances provided for herein to the persons designated are in lieu of any other expenses authorized by law or resolution for the same purposes.

Sec. 56. Subdivision 1. The capitol area architectural and planning commission is hereby authorized and directed to conduct a study, prepare a written report, and make recommendations to the legislature, not later than January 1, 1974, on the location of the offices and functions of state government within the capitol area as defined by Minnesota Statutes, Section 15.50, including, but not limited to, the following questions:

(a) Which offices and functions must be located within the capitol area to ensure the orderly functioning of state government;

(b) Which offices and functions may be located outside of the capitol area without impairing the orderly functioning of state government; In conducting its study and making its reports and recommendations, the commission shall also consider the effect of the location of the offices and functions of state government on

(1) The accessibility of the offices and functions of state government to members of the public; and

(2) The convenience of the employees of state government.

The commission may hire such additional employees and consultants as may be necessary to complete the study and prepare the report and recommendations.

Subd. 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 15.50, Subdivision 3, the full cost of the study and report required by this section shall be the responsibility of the state.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. There is hereby appropriated \$100,000 from the general fund for the purposes of this section for the biennium ending June 30, 1975.

Sec. 57. Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 23, Subdivision 3, as amended by Laws 1967, Chapter 867, Section 9, is repealed.

Sec. 58. Subdivision 1. There is appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the appropriate funds in the state treasury such sums as may be necessary to pay increases in compensation of officers, department heads and other individuals in the judicial and executive branches of the state government, all in the unclassified service, if such salary increases are otherwise authorized by law during the 1973 session of the legislature.

Subd. 2. There is appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the appropriate funds in the state treasury such sums as may be necessary to pay increases in compensation of officers, department heads and other individuals in the judicial and executive branches of the state government, all in the unclassified service, if such salary increases are authorized under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 15A.021 and 15A.12.

Subd. 3. There is appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the appropriate funds in the state treasury such sums as may be necessary to pay increases in compensation of officers and employees of the executive branch of state government all in the classified service, members of the state highway patrol, and non-academic employees of the university of Minnesota who are paid from state funds, if such salary increases are authorized by law during the 1973 session of the legislature.

Subd. 4. There is appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the appropriate funds in the state treasury such sums as may be necessary to pay shift differential and severance pay to employees of the state classified service, members of the highway patrol and unclassified employees of the junior college system, if such payments are authorized by law during the 1973 session of the legislature.

Subd. 5. The commissioner shall certify the necessary amounts to the state auditor, who shall transfer such amounts to the appropriate accounts. Sums so certified and transferred are hereby appropriated. The appropriations made by this section are for the biennium beginning July 1, 1973.

Subd. 6. Any sums certified and transferred to the university of Minnesota under the provisions of subdivision 3 of this section or Minnesota Statutes, Sections 43.50, 352.04, Subdivision 5, and 355.50 shall only be used for the purpose certified. Any sum transferred

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

that exceeds the increased cost above the amount appropriated for that purpose shall be returned and deposited in the state treasury.

Sec. 59. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 326.52, is amended to read:

326.52 DEPOSIT OF FEES. All fees received under sections 326.46 to 326.52 shall be paid deposited by the department of labor and industry ~~to the state treasurer, and an amount of money equal to the amount so paid over by the department to the treasurer is hereby appropriated, out of any funds to the credit of the general fund in the state treasury not otherwise appropriated, to the department for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of sections 326.46 to 326.52.~~ The salaries and per diem of the inspectors and examiners hereinbefore provided, their expenses, and all incidental expenses of the department in carrying out the provisions of sections 326.46 to 326.52 shall be paid ~~on order of the department from such appropriation, but no expense or claim shall be incurred or paid in excess of the amount received from the fees herein provided from the appropriations made to the department of labor and industry.~~

Sec. 60. [15.161] **ACCEPTANCE OF FEDERAL LANDS OR BUILDINGS; CONSULTATION WITH LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEES.** The head of a state department or agency shall consult with the chairman of the house appropriations committee and the chairman of the senate finance committee before accepting any federal land or buildings thereon or any interest therein which is declared surplus by federal authorities and obtaining a recommendation thereon which shall be advisory only. Failure to obtain a recommendation thereon promptly shall be deemed a negative recommendation.

Sec. 61. Subdivision 1. [97.4861] **CONTRACTS FOR REMOVAL OF ROUGH FISH.** Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no contract shall be awarded for the removal of rough fish except in accordance with requirements of law regarding the awarding of a contract after competitive bidding. A contractor of rough fish pursuant to this subdivision may sell or otherwise dispose of the rough fish which he acquires from the state.

Subd. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 97.486 is repealed.

Sec. 62. The sum of \$40,000 is appropriated for the biennium ending June 30, 1975, to the department of military affairs for the St. Cloud national guard armory to be expended for blacktopping the parking lot, installing curbs, gutters, and catch basins, and providing security lighting.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 63. [16.164] APPLICATIONS FOR NON-STATE FUNDS. Subdivision 1. Every department or agency of the executive branch of state government shall, prior to the submission of any application for non-state funds, submit the original of the application to the commissioner of administration. The commissioner shall promptly return the application indicating his approval or disapproval. No application for funds shall be submitted without the prior approval of the commissioner of administration. The commissioner of administration may promulgate rules, regulations, and directives to implement the provisions of this section.

Subd. 2. The provisions of this section shall not apply to the Minnesota historical society.

Subd. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 16.165 is repealed.

Sec. 64. Subdivision 1. [16.141] Subd. 3a. WAIVER OF REQUIREMENT OF SUBMITTING BUDGET. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the commissioner of administration after consulting the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives and the committee on finance of the senate may waive the requirements for submitting a budget by object of expenditure for agencies and departments which are, at his direction, requesting programmatic appropriations.

Subd. 2. Subdivision 1 takes the place of Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 16.141, Subdivision 3, which subdivision is repealed.

Sec. 65. [6.47] DEPOSIT OF TAX RECEIPTS IN SINGLE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT FOR EACH TAX. Subdivision 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 290.361, 291.33, 297.13, 298.17, 298.281, 298.282, 298.32, 298.39, 298.396, 298.51, 298.64, 298.65, 340.60 and similar laws to the contrary relating to the depositing, disposition, or apportionment of tax receipts, the state auditor may provide for a single depository account for each tax or kind of taxes providing adequate information is available to determine the source and disposition or apportionment of the tax to meet statutory requirements. The auditor shall request such transfers and certifications as are necessary to meet such statutory requirements. The state auditor may issue directives to implement the provisions of this section.

Sec. 66. [6.48] FEDERAL GENERAL REVENUE SHARING FUNDS, TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND. Any moneys heretofore or hereafter received from federal general revenue sharing funds and any interest earned on such moneys shall be transferred to the general fund in order to comply with the United States Department of Treasury regulations that such federal general revenue sharing funds be appropriated and expended in the same manner as the state's own revenues. Upon transfer such federal

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

general revenue sharing funds shall be appropriated and expended in the same manner as all other moneys in the general fund. Provided, however, that such federal general revenue sharing funds shall not be appropriated or considered to be appropriated to any local unit of government, including school districts, the university of Minnesota, or for any purpose that is contrary to the provisions of Public Law 92-512 or the regulations of the United States Department of the Treasury. The state auditor shall make such transfers, and the sums so transferred are then a part of the general fund and available for appropriation and expenditure.

Sec. 67. The balance remaining from the amount appropriated for lake and channel improvement by Laws of 1971, Extra Session, Laws 1971, Chapter 3, Section 36, Subdivision 2, Clause (d), shall not cancel on June 30, 1973, but shall be available until expended.

Sec. 68. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 8.02, is amended to read:

8.02 DEPUTIES, ASSISTANTS. The attorney general may appoint, and at his pleasure remove, two deputy attorneys general and ~~six~~ nine assistant attorneys general, who shall render such aid as he may require of them in the discharge of his official duty. He shall keep a record of his official correspondence and of all matters placed in his hands by the governor, auditor, secretary of state, or treasurer, or any officer or board in charge of any of the business of the state upon which any official action is necessary; he shall also keep a record of all legal proceedings instituted by him or in which he appears, and of the several steps taken therein. All official opinions shall be in writing and copies thereof made and filed in his office. The deputy attorneys general and each of such assistants shall, to the extent authorized in writing by the attorney general, have authority to appear before grand juries or in any court of this state, as the attorney general himself might do.

The attorney general shall have power to employ such assistance, whether lay, legal, or expert, as he may deem necessary for the protection of the interests of the state through the proper conduct of its legal business.

Sec. 69. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 3.921, is amended to read:

3.921 STANDING COMMITTEES AS INTERIM STUDY COMMITTEES. Subdivision 1. Each standing committee or subcommittee existing in the senate and house of representatives is continued during the intervals between sessions of the legislature to make studies and investigations within the general jurisdiction of each such committee, as directed by the committee on rules and administration of the senate and the committee on rules and

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

legislative administration of the house of representatives, or as otherwise prescribed by resolution, existing at the time the legislature last adjourned in regular session, duly adopted or by law.

Subd. 2. Vacancies in any such committee or subcommittee during such intervals shall be filled by the last elected speaker of the house of representatives as to house committees and by the last elected senate committee on committees as to senate committees.

Subd. 3. Any standing committee of the senate that requires an appropriation of funds to defray expenses of its operations during the interim shall prepare a budget, which budget shall be submitted to the senate committee on rules and legislative expense administration for its approval. No funds shall be expended by such standing committee without prior approval of the senate committee on rules and legislative expense administration. Any standing committee of the house of representatives that requires an appropriation of funds to defray expenses of its operations during the interim shall prepare a budget, which budget shall be submitted to the rules committee of the house of representatives for its approval. No funds shall be expended by such standing committee without prior approval of the rules committee of the house of representatives.

Subd. 4. The expenses of any such committee shall be paid upon the certification to the state auditor of the amount thereof. Payment of such expenses is hereby directed from any direct appropriation therefor to the legislature or either branch thereof.

Sec. 70. [16.02] Subd. 5a. Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.02, Subdivision 5, shall not apply to the construction of the Minnesota Zoological Gardens except with respect to the letting of competitive bids.

Sec. 71. Subdivision 1. The appropriation made in Laws 1973, Chapter 143, Section 1, Subdivision 12, in the sum of \$1,385.03 is cancelled.

Subd. 2. There is hereby appropriated to the state auditor for the biennium ending June 30, 1973, \$1,385.03 for payment to Webb Publishing Company for printing of Minnesota Liability Study Commission report.

Sec. 72. [8.025] **PART TIME SPECIAL ATTORNEYS, PAYMENT ON HOURLY BASIS BEYOND \$10,000.** No part time special attorney assigned to any professional or occupational licensing board of state government, after having received \$10,000 for his official duties in any fiscal year, regardless of the fund from which he is paid, shall be paid an hourly amount exceeding the equivalent amount paid full time special assistant attorneys gener-

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

al, plus reasonable office expenses, as approved by the attorney general.

Sec. 73. Subdivision 1. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 268.15, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **INTEREST AND PENALTIES.** ~~There is hereby created in the state treasury a special fund, to be known as the manpower services contingent fund, which shall not lapse nor revert to any other fund. Such fund shall consist of all moneys appropriated therefor by the legislature. All moneys in the form of interest and penalties collected pursuant to section 268.16 and all moneys received in the form of voluntary contributions to this fund. All moneys in such fund shall be supplemental to all federal moneys that would be available to the commissioner but for the existence of this fund. Such fund shall be available to the commissioner for such expenditures as he may deem necessary in connection with the administration of sections 268.03 to 268.24. Whenever the commissioner expends moneys from said contingent fund for the proper and efficient administration of the Minnesota manpower services law for which funds have not yet been made available by the federal government, such moneys so withdrawn from the contingent fund shall be replaced as hereinafter provided. Upon the deposit in the manpower services administration fund of moneys which are received in reimbursement of payments made as above provided from said contingent fund, the commissioner shall certify to the state treasurer the amount of such reimbursement and thereupon the state treasurer shall transfer such amount from the manpower services administration fund to said contingent fund. All moneys in this fund shall be deposited, administered, and disbursed in the same manner and under the same conditions and requirements as is provided by law for the other special funds in the state treasury except that moneys in this fund shall not be commingled with other state funds, but shall be maintained in a separate account on the books of a depository bank. The state treasurer shall be liable on his official bond for the faithful performance of his duties in connection with the manpower services contingent fund provided for herein shall be paid into the general fund.~~

Subd. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 268.16, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

268.16 COLLECTION OF CONTRIBUTIONS. Subdivision 1. **INTEREST ON PAST DUE CONTRIBUTIONS.** If contributions are not paid on the date on which they are due and payable, as prescribed by the commissioner, the whole or part thereafter remaining unpaid shall bear interest at the rate of one percent per month from and after such date until the first day of the calendar month during which payment is made to the department of

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

manpower services; provided, however, that during the first month of delinquency interest shall be computed on the basis of one-thirtieth of one percent per month for each and every day of such delinquency. After any contribution has become delinquent for a period of 12 months thereafter interest thereon shall be computed at the rate of six percent per annum. Contributions, if mailed, shall be deemed to have been paid on the date of mailing as indicated by the postmark on the cover thereof; provided, however, that after January 1, 1949, contributions received by mail post-marked on a day following the date on which the law requires such contributions to be paid shall be deemed to have been paid on the due date if there is substantial evidence by affidavit or otherwise reasonably tending to prove that said report or contribution was actually deposited in the United States mails properly addressed to the department with postage prepaid thereon on or before the due date. ~~Interest collected pursuant to this subdivision shall be paid into the contingent fund.~~

Subd. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 268.16, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **REPORTS; DELINQUENCIES; PENALTIES.** (1) Any employer who knowingly fails to make and submit to the department of manpower services any report of wages paid by or due from him for insured work in the manner and at the time such report is required by regulations prescribed by the commissioner shall pay to the department of manpower services ~~for the contingent fund~~ an amount equal to one percent of contributions accrued during the period for which such report is required, for each month from and after such date until such report is properly made and submitted to the department of manpower services. In no case shall the amount of the penalty imposed hereby be less than \$5 except that in cases where the contribution is less than \$10 and the commissioner finds that the employer does not habitually fail to report on time the penalty shall be \$1. Any employing unit which fails to make and submit to the commissioner any report, other than one of wages paid or payable for insured work, as and when required by the regulations of the commissioner, shall be subject to a penalty in the sum of \$10 payable to the department of manpower services ~~for the contingent fund~~. All such penalties shall be in addition to interest and any other penalties provided for by sections 268.03 to 268.24 and shall be collected by civil action as hereinafter provided.

(2) If any employing unit required by sections 268.03 to 268.24 to make and submit contribution reports shall fail to do so within the time prescribed by these sections or by regulations under the authority thereof, or shall make, wilfully or otherwise, an incorrect, false or fraudulent contribution report, he shall, on the written demand of the commissioner, make such contribution report, or

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

corrected report, within ten days after the mailing of such written demand and at the same time pay the whole contribution, or additional contribution, due on the basis thereof. If such employer shall fail within that time to make such report, or corrected report, the commissioner shall make for him a report, or corrected report, from his own knowledge and from such information as he can obtain through testimony, or otherwise, and assess a contribution on the basis thereof, which contribution, plus penalties and interest which thereafter accrued (less any payments theretofore made) shall be paid within ten days after the commissioner has mailed to such employer a written notice of the amount thereof and demand for its payment. Any such contribution report or assessment made by the commissioner on account of the failure of the employer to make a report or corrected report shall be prima facie correct and valid, and the employer shall have the burden of establishing its incorrectness or invalidity in any action or proceeding in respect thereto. Whenever such delinquent employer shall file a report or corrected report, the commissioner may, if he finds it substantially correct, substitute it for the commissioner's report. If an employer has failed to submit any report of wages paid, or has filed an incorrect report, and the commissioner finds that such noncompliance with the terms of sections 268.03 to 268.24 was not wilful and that such employer was free from fraudulent intent, the commissioner shall limit the charge against such employer to the period of the year in which such condition has been found to exist and for the preceding calendar year.

Sec. 74. [6.221] JUDICIAL AND LEGISLATIVE BRANCHES, ACCOUNTING AND PAYROLL SYSTEMS. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the contrary, neither the judicial nor legislative branches of state government are required to participate in the statewide accounting system or in a computerized payroll system.

Sec. 75. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, if a law is passed in the 68th session of the legislature creating a TV cable commission and appropriating money for such commission, the appropriation shall be available until June 30, 1975.

Sec. 76. Subdivision 1. The term "president pro-tempore" as used in the law creating the legislative audit commission means the "president of the senate".

Subd. 2. The revisor of statutes shall make the appropriate change in terminology in the next edition of Minnesota Statutes or any supplement thereof.

Sec. 77. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 16.17, is amended to read:

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

16.17 APPROPRIATIONS TO REVERT TO STATE TREASURY. Except as specifically provided for in appropriation acts, every appropriation or part thereof of any kind hereafter made subject to the provisions of this section remaining unexpended and unencumbered at the close of any fiscal year shall lapse and be returned to the general fund fund from which such appropriation was made; provided, that an appropriation for construction or other permanent improvement shall not lapse until the purposes for which the appropriation was made shall have been accomplished or abandoned unless such appropriation has stood during the entire fiscal biennium without any expenditure therefrom or encumbrances thereon.

Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, the provisions of this section shall apply to every appropriation of a stated sum for a specified purpose or purposes heretofore or hereafter made from the general fund, but shall not, unless expressly so provided by law, apply to any fund or balance of a fund derived wholly or partly from special taxes, fees, earnings, fines, federal grants, or other sources which are by law appropriated for special purposes by standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations.

Sec. 78. [15A.211] TRAVEL EXPENSES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, the members and staff of all state boards, councils, and commissions in the executive branch, established by state law or otherwise, shall only be reimbursed for travel expenses both in-state and out-of-state in accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the commissioner of administration governing the travel of state officers and employees.

Sec. 79. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 15A.21 is repealed.

Sec. 80. The mills referred to in a law enacted in the 1973 session and identified as H.F.No. 715, authorizing the metropolitan transit commission to levy taxes, are mills prior to the adoption of Minnesota Statutes, Section 273.1102.

Sec. 81. COUNTY OF WRIGHT; ABATEMENT OF CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TAXES. The county auditor of the county of Wright is hereby directed to remove from that county's tax rolls and to forthwith abate all real estate taxes currently levied and assessed against Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7, Guilfoyle's Addition to the village of Delano, county of Wright, state of Minnesota.

Sec. 82. The commissioner of taxation is authorized to pay from the department appropriations, the per diem and expenses of the public member of the levy limitations review board in the event that such board is established by act of the 1973 session of the legislature.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 83. STATE; CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY. Subdivision 1. The commissioner of taxation shall convey and quit claim to Clarence R. Berthiaume, in such form as may be prescribed by the attorney general and for the consideration of \$40, the lands described in subdivision 2, such conveyance to be made without recourse.

Subd. 2. The lands to be conveyed pursuant to subdivision 1, being situated in the state of Minnesota, county of Hennepin, are further described as follows: the westerly four (4) feet of Lot 5, Block 2, in the village of Loretto.

Subd. 3. The provisions of this section shall take effect on the day following final enactment.

Sec. 84. There is hereby appropriated to the commissioner of natural resources the sum of \$1,658,000 from the game and fish fund for the remodeling and reconstruction of the French river and Lanesboro hatchery facilities. The department is authorized and directed to negotiate with the federal government, or any agency, bureau, or department thereof, for the purpose of securing or obtaining any grants of assistance in the completion of those projects. The department is authorized to implement a commissioner's order for a two dollar additional fee or license surcharge to take lake trout, brook trout, salmon, and other trout from the public waters of the state. This appropriation shall be available until expended or the projects are completed or abandoned. Any and all revenues which may be raised by the license surcharge herein authorized, shall be deposited to the game and fish fund.

Sec. 85. [190.081] PERSONNEL ASSIGNED TO ARMORIES, CLASSIFICATION. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the contrary, all personnel employed by the adjutant general and assigned to an armory shall be in the unclassified service.

Approved May 24, 1973.

CHAPTER 721—H.F.No.9

[Coded]

An act relating to labor; creating a division of labor standards; providing for minimum wage and overtime standards; providing penalties for violations; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 175.38; 175.39; and 177.01 to 177.20.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.